
TOWNSHIP OF CHISHOLM COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
2847 Chiswick Line, R.R. # 4 

Powassan, Ontario, P0H 1Z0 
Phone (705) 724-3526   Fax (705) 724-5099 

info@chisholm.ca 
Gail Degagne, Mayor 

Lesley Marshall, CAO Clerk-Treasurer 

AGENDA 
COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 24, 2025 – 6:30 P.M. 
“We respectfully acknowledge that we are on the traditional territory of the Anishinaabe 

Peoples, in the Robinson-Huron and Williams Treaties areas.  We wish to acknowledge the long 

history of First Nations and Metis Peoples in Ontario and show respect to the neighbouring 

Indigenous communities.  We offer our gratitude for their care for, and teachings about, our 

earth and our relations. May we continue to honor these teachings.” 

1. Call to Order

2. Declaration of pecuniary interest.

3. Approval of Agenda.

4. Consider the following Consent Application:

(a) File # 2025-05, 06, 07 – Loxton – Con. 13 Lot 1 – 1278 Memorial Park Drive

5. Adjournment

mailto:info@chisholm.ca
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TOWNSHIP OF CHISHOLM 

PLANNING REPORT 

 

A. PR0POSAL/BACKGROUND 

An application to sever has been submitted by Tulloch Geomatics Inc. on behalf of Betty 
Loxton.  The application proposes to sever three rural lots and retain one on Lot 1, 
Concession 13. Severed area 1 and 2 are to be approximately 15 acres each in size with 
147 meters of frontage on Trappers Road. Severed Area 3 contains a dwelling and farm 
buildings and is to be approximately 35 acres and will have 348 meters of frontage on 
Trappers Road and 403 meters of frontage on Memorial Park Drive. The retained lands 
will be approximately 37.4 acres in size and 362 meters of frontage on Trappers Road.  
The property is currently accessed via Memorial Park Drive at 1278 Memorial Park Drive.  

 

B. ZONING BY-LAW COMPLIANCE 

The subject lands are designated Rural (RU), under the Township of Chisholm Zoning By-
law (ZB) 2014-25.  In the Rural Zone, residential uses are permitted, as per Table A1 on 
Page 61 of the ZB. The severed and retained lots conform to the Zoning By-law minimum 
lot area and frontage requirements.  

Figure 1 is an excerpt from Schedule A of the Zoning By-law. Figure 2 is from CGIS. The 
majority of the property is wooded and there are some areas of pastures.  

 

 

Report 
Prepared 
for: 

Committee of 
Adjustment 

Application 
Number: 

2025-06, 07, 08 

Report 
Prepared by: 

Jessica Laberge 
Admin. 
Assistant 

Owner/Applicant:  Betty 
Loxton/Tulloch 
Geomatics Inc. 

Location: Lot 1, Con. 13   
Report Date: June 18, 2025   
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Subject Property 

 

           
Figure 1: Schedule B ZB                                                                             Figure 2: CGIS    

C. OFFICIAL PLAN 

The property is designated Rural under the Official Plan of the Township of Chisholm. 

Section B1.3 – Rural 

Within the rural designation, single detached dwellings are a permitted use.  The subject 
land is all in the Rural designation. 

Section B1.4.1(a) allows for the severance of a maximum of 4 new lots may be severed 
from an original Township lot having a lot area of 40 hectares.  According to our records, 
the subject lot is an original Township lot that is 100 Acres.   

The proposed severed area 1, 2 and 3 have frontage on Trappers Road. It appears that 
the travelled road is situated on portions of the subject land. The applicant will be 
required to survey the road and transfer the road to the Township. The severed area 3 
will also have frontage on Memorial Park Drive. Severed area 3 contains a house, barn 
and farm out buildings and has an existing entrance off of Memorial Park Drive.  
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Section B1.4.1(g) the boundary of the severed lot complies with the minimum distance 
required by the MDS1 Formula. An MDS1 calculation was submitted for the barn on the 
subject land, with a minimum distance of 129 meters. The severed and retained meets 
the MDS calculation. The retained lands will have frontage on Trappers Road, which 
meets the criteria in Section D4.2.1(a) that requires the proposed lot to front on and be 
directly accessed by a public road that is maintained on a year-round basis.   

 

Provincial Planning Statement 

All decisions under the Planning Act are required to be consistent with the Provincial 
Planning Statement. 

The province released a new Provincial Planning Statement which came into effect on 
October 20, 2024.  This Planning Report was considered from the perspective of this 
new Provincial Planning Statement, 2024 

According to the Provincial Planning Statement: 

• Growth and development may be directed to rural lands in accordance with section 
2.6, including where a municipality does not have a settlement area – (Section 2.5.3); 

• On rural lands located in municipalities, permitted uses are: residential development, 
including lot creation, where site conditions are suitable for the provision of 
appropriate sewage and water services (Section 2.61. c) 

• Development that can be sustained by rural services levels should be promoted. 
(Section 2.6.2) 

• Development shall be appropriate to the infrastructure which is planned or available, 
and avoid the need for the uneconomical expansion of this infrastructure. (Section 
2.63) 

In reviewing the Provincial Planning Statement, and applying relevant policies, it is my 
opinion that the proposed application is consistent with the Provincial Planning 
Statement, 2024. 
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D. Buildings and Uses 

The subject land contains a house, barn and farm out buildings. 

 

 

Attached to this report: 

• Comments from North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority 
• Planning Justification Briefing prepared by Mackenzie Van Horn, M.PL., RPP and 

reviewed by Steve McArthur, MCP., RPP from Tulloch Geomatics Inc. 
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May 30, 2025 

Corporation of the Township of Chisholm 
Committee of Adjustment 
2847 Chiswick Line RR# 4  
Powassan, ON  P0H 1Z0 
info@chisholm.ca  
 
Attention: Jessica Laberge, Administrative Assistant 
 
RE: Application for Consent – Loxton 
 1278 Memorial Park Drive, Concession 13, Lot 1; Parcel 8677 
 Assessment Roll Number: 48310000030010000000 
 Township File: 2025-07 Loxton 

NBMCA File: PC04-CHI-25  
 

The North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority (NBMCA) has received and reviewed the 
proposed consent application for the creation of one severed lot, 14.16ha in size with 
frontage on Memorial Park Drive, and one retained lot, 15.11ha in size, with frontage on 
Trappers Road, herein referred to as “the subject lands”. The following comments are 
based on a review of the application with respect to Section 5.2 of the 2024 Provincial 
Planning Statement (Natural Hazards), Ontario Regulation 41/24 (Prohibited Activities, 
Exemptions, and Permits) as per Section 28.1 of the Conservation Authorities Act, Part 8 of 
the Ontario Building Code (OBC), and as a Source Protection Authority under the Clean 
Water Act (CWA).  

The Municipal Planning Review jurisdiction of NBMCA only partially encompasses the 
subject lands; including the southeast corner of the retained lands and south and eastern 
sides of the proposed severed area 3 (as shown in the enclosed map). The balance of Lot 1 
Concession 13 falls outside of NBMCA’s jurisdiction. 

NBMCA regulates natural hazard features and their adjacent lands such as floodplains, 
shorelines, wetlands, and watercourses under O. Reg 41/24. There is one area of wetland 
mapped on the proposed retained lands that is regulated by the CA. NBMCA only regulates 
the feature and the 30m adjacent within the Planning Review jurisdiction. Where 
development within the regulated area (as indicated on the enclosed mapping) is 
proposed, a permit from NBMCA may be required. 

Since the proposed retained and severed lots are greater than 4 hectares (10 acres) our 
office is satisfied that there is adequate space for a sewage system on both lots based on 
Ontario Regulation 203/24 of the OBC for a 3-bedroom dwelling (less than 20 fixture units 
and less than 200 m2, 4F filter bed of 21.3 m2 and a 3600 L tank), soil percolation of T-50 

http://www.nbmca.ca/
mailto:info@chisholm.ca
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min/cm, and a daily design sewage flow of 1600 L/day. Please note that zoning by-laws are 
applicable in this area and increased setbacks may apply. Please be advised that prior to 
any development on the above-mentioned properties a Sewage System Permit is required.  
Should you have any questions or require further information please contact Derek Airdrie 
of our office at 15 Janey Avenue, North Bay ON, P1C 1N1 or by telephone at (705) 474-5420 

With respect to the CWA, the subject lands are wholly located within an area of Highly 
Vulnerable Aquifers (HVA) and partially within a Significant Groundwater Recharge Area 
(SGRA). There is an area of Intake Protection Zone 3 (IPZ-3A & 3B) and Issue Contributing 
Area (ICA) for Callander on both proposed severed and proposed retained lots (see 
enclosed maps). Under the current Source Protection Plan (SPP), and pending updated 
SPP, there are policies that address significant drinking water threat activities that apply in 
these areas. Some threats are addressed by land use prohibitions while other threats are 
addressed through education and outreach. The Township, implementing bodies, and 
landowners should have regard for these policies. A copy of the SPP can be found here: 
https://bit.ly/41mWDYG. 

NBMCA is satisfied that the application, where located within NBMCA’s area of jurisdiction, 
is consistent with the policies as set out in Section 5.2 of the PPS and therefore, we have no 
objection. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly at 
(705) 474-5420 x 2004.  

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 
Hannah Wolfram 
Planning and Regulations Officer

http://www.nbmca.ca/
https://bit.ly/41mWDYG
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Map of 1278 Memorial Park Drive 

http://www.nbmca.ca/
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